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Appendix 7

Question words, subordinators and complementizers
1. Interrogation and embedded sentence complements
The following forms are used for interrogatives (who?, what?, where?, when?, why?, which?). They are also used when a verb takes a sentential complement (e.g., ‘I don’t know where you are going? / Xnihmati ka:no:n tiaw)

	Interrogative
	In complement
	Meaning
	Phrases

	a:kino:n / a:'inon
	a:kino:n / a:kin
	who
	¿A:kino:n ya:s?

¡Xnihmati a:kino:n ya:s!

	tli:no:n
	tli:non / tli:n
	what
	¿Tli:no:n kineki?

¡Xnihmati tli:no:n kineki!

	ka:no:n
	ka:mpa / ka:no:n 

	where
	¿Ka:no:n nemi motah?

¡Xnihmati ka:mpa nemi notah! (Oa)
¡Xnihmati ka:no:n nemi notah! (Am/Oa)

	ke:no:n
	ke:no:n 
	how
	¿Ke:no:n tihchi:was?

¡Xnihmati ke:no:n nihchi:was!

	kamano:n
	kamano:n
	when
	¿Kamano:n tihpale:wi:s? (Oa)
¡Xnihmati kamano:n nihpale:wi:s! (Oa)

	tliá: / tlia:o:n
tle:ka
	tle:ka (Am)

tliá: / tlia:o:n (Oa)
	why
	Tlia:o:n tihchi:was?

xnihmati tliá: tihchi:was!

	kátliwá / kátlewá

kátló / kátlió 
katlewa / katlowa
	kátliwá / kátlewá

kátló / kátlió
katlewa / katlowa
	which (one)
	¿Kátliwá tihkwis?

¡Xnihmati kátlewá nihkwis!

	katlih
	———
	where (see below)
	Katlih motomi:n?
Katlih Juan?


Notes: The use of ka:mpa is widespread in Oapan and rare in Ameyaltepec except in the phrase de ka:mpa, meaning ‘if’ (¡De ka:mpa tikneki, tia:skeh!). Besides being used in complement clauses, in Oapan ka:mpa has the sense of French chez: Niá:s ka:mpa Juan. ‘I’m going to Juan’s house.’

The Oapan form tliá: seems to be an obvious contraction of tle:ka. The form tlia:o:n seems to be used more often when the interrogative stands alone: ¿Tlia:o:n? ‘Why (is it)?’ but not so much before a verb (although this needs further investigation).

The use of Katlih is unclear. It is used as an interrogative only to ask for the location of either an inanimate or animate. It seems to be used when the location of the person or thing being enquired about is expected to be somewhere locally. It has the sense of ‘Where is it/he/her?’ and, apparently, that the looking has already begun. Or, someone might say: Pakah motomi:n! (Your money is over there!) and the other might respond, after having looked briefly, Katlih? More research needs to be done on this.
Indefinite and negative indefinites

Note: Specifically Oapan forms are in italics.
	Indefinite
	Indefinite negative
	Meaning
	Phrases

	yekah / yakah 
	xakah / xekah
	someone

no one
	Yekah kichi:was. (Someone will do it)
Xakah mitspale:wi:s (No one will help you)

	itlah
	xtlah 

xitlah
	something

nothing
	¿Itlah kineki? (Does he want something?)
¡Ka:, xtlah kineki! (No, he doesn’t want anything)

	kanah
	xkahan
	somewhere
nowhere
	Ka:nah nemis. (He is somewhere)
Xkanah o:nkah. (There is none anywhere)


	ma:san ke:no:n
ma:si san ke:no:n
	?
	however
	¿Ke:no:n tihchi:was? (How will you do it?)
¡Xnihmati ke:no:n nikchi:was, ma:si san ke:no:n! I don’t know how I’ll do it, in whatever way [I can]

	ma:san kamano:n
ma:si san kamano:n
	?
	whenever
	¿Kamano:n tihpale:wi:s? (When will you help him?)
¡Xnihmati kamano:n nihpale:wi:s, ma:si san kamano:n! (I don’t know when I will help him, whenever [it is is fine]. 


Note: Ma:san / Ma:si san can be used with a:kino:n, tli:no:n and ka:no:n to indicate, respective, whoever, whatever, and wherever.

Adverbial clauses / subordinators

	Subordinator
	Meaning
	Phrases

	ka:mpa
	where
	Niá:s ka:mpa nemi notah!
I will go where my father is.

	ke:n
	how, in the manner that
	Nihchi:was ke:n tawa tihchi:wane.
I will do it how you want me to do it.

	kwa:k 

íkwa:k
	when
	Ni:á:s íkwa:k tawa tine:chihlia.
I will go when you tell me.


Relative pronouns and relativizers
	Relativizer
	Meaning
	Phrases

	yo: / yo:n
	he/she/it who (that)
	Nihtla:ke:was se: kalchi:hke:tl yo:n kwahli tekiti.

I will hire a bricklayer (one) who knows how to work.



	ka:mpa
	(the place) where
	Nikwelita ka:mpa tinemi!

I like (the place) where who live!

	a:kin / a:kino:n
	(the one) who
	Nihpale:wi:s a:´in ne:chpale:wia

I will help whoever helps me (not specific)

Nihpale:wi:s yo: o:ne:chpale:wih!

I will help the one who helped me.

	tli:n / tli:no:n
	that which
	Nikwelita tli:n o:mitskowilih nona:n

	
	
	


Notes:

yo: is usually found before vowels, yo:n before consonants and semivowels

yo:/yo:n usually indicate a specific referent


Nihkwis yo:n chi:chi:ltik ‘I’ll take the red one’


Nihkwis yo: ista:k ‘I’ll take the white one.’
ka:mpa is used for headless relative clauses that involve a place, yo:/yo:n for HRC that involve a person, animal or thing

Note that yo:/yo:n may be used to relativize subjects or objects:

subject:
Nihpale:wi:s yo: o:ne:chpale:wih ‘I will help the one/person who helped me’


object:
Nihpale:wi:s yo: ya:lwa o:tikitak ‘I will help the one/person who you saw yesterday’

object:
Nihkoxte:kas te:lpa’atsi:n yo: o:kihlikeh se: kwe:ntoh. ‘I will put to bed the young boy to whom they told a story’
place:
No:mpale:wi:s ka:mpa ya:lwa o:ne:chpale:wih. I will go help him (at the place) where he helped me yesterday.
yo:/yo:n may take the place of the nominal head (meaning ‘he/she/it who/that’):


Nihpale:wi:s yo:n ya:lwa o:ne:chpale:wih. ‘I will help he/the man (she/the woman) who helped me.

or may follow the nominal head.


Nihkowas yo:lki yo:n we:i ‘I will buy the animal that is big’

Nihkowas se: yo:lki yo:n we:i ‘I will buy an animal that is big.’

Note also the following:


No:minto:kas yo:n ma:kwiltih tla:kameh o:mihkeh ‘I will go bury the five men who died’

